
                                                                                                                   

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodations to participate in meetings should contact the Park District’s ADA Compliance Coordinator, at the Park District’s Administrative 
Office by mail at 540 Hibbard Rd, Winnetka, IL, by phone at 847-501-2040, Monday - Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., or by email to lbaker@winpark.org at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Requests for a qualified interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. 

 

 

 
WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING* 
Thursday, September 22, 2022 | 6:00 p.m. 

Hubbard Woods School Auditorium, 1110 Chatfield Rd. 
 
 
AGENDA 

 

1. Roll Call 
2. Additions or Changes to the Agenda 
3. Approval of August 2022 Financials** 
4. Approval of Vouchers** 
5. Remarks from Visitors 
6. New Business 

a. Consideration of Equipment Purchase – John Deere Tractor**  
7. Approval of Minutes/Consent Agenda 

a. Special Board Meeting Minutes of June 9, 2022** 
8. Communications** 
9. Unfinished Business 

a. Elder + Centennial 
b. Consideration of Board Approval Process for Elder + Centennial 

Improvement & Maintenance Projects** 
c. Consideration of Resolution #22-09-22 and Real Estate Sale Contract for 

Sale of Library Park** 
d. KemperSports Contract 

10. Matters from the Director  
11. Board Liaison Reports 
12. Remarks from Visitors  
13. Staff Reports 
14. Closed Session 

The Board will enter Closed Session to discuss: 
a. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or 

dismissal of specific employees of the public body - Sect. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) 
b. The purchase or lease of property - 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5) 
c. The setting of a price for sale or lease of property - 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(6) 
d. Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular 

public body has been filed and is pending before a court or administrative 
tribunal, or when the public body finds that an action is probable or 
imminent - 5 ILCS 120/2 (c) (11) 

15. Return to Open Session 
a. Consideration of Action, If Any, of Items Discussed in Closed Session 

 

-OVER- 

1

mailto:lbaker@winpark.org


                                                                                                                   

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodations to participate in meetings should contact the Park District’s ADA Compliance Coordinator, at the Park District’s Administrative 
Office by mail at 540 Hibbard Rd, Winnetka, IL, by phone at 847-501-2040, Monday - Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., or by email to lbaker@winpark.org at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Requests for a qualified interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. 

 

 

 

16. Adjournment  
        
*Meeting recorded via Zoom  
To view the meeting via Zoom, sign in and enter Meeting ID #873 2124 5113 and Passcode #371679.  To listen 
via phone, call +1.312.626.6799 and use the same meeting number and passcode.  Zoom is the platform used to 
video record the meeting.  As such, the “chat” feature will not be monitored.  Public comment will be accepted in 
person during Agenda Items 5 and 12 - “Remarks from Visitors”. 
 
**Items included in packet 

2

mailto:lbaker@winpark.org


Operating Performance Summary YTD
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

• Operating Deficit $90,517 YTD vs Budget*
Operating 

Performance vs 
Budget

• Operating Revenues $1,203,300 below YTD budget
• Operating Expenses $426,857 below YTD budget
• Operating Capitals $685,926 below YTD budget

Performance Drivers 
vs Budget  

• Operating Revenue projected $2,100,000 below budget 
due to Cook County tax delay

• Operating Expenses projected $242,800 below budget
• Operating Capitals projected $611,250 below budget

2022 Year End 
Projections

1• Operating performance would be $2,334,789 above budget if Cook County disbursed $2,425,306 
in property taxes during July and August as expected.

3



 

WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT 
REMARKS FROM VISITORS & PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
 
 

At regular Park Board meetings, there is an agenda item called Remarks from Visitors. Remarks may also be 
solicited at special meetings. Public hearings are specifically designed to seek feedback from the community. 

If you have a question or concern and need to address the Board at any of these meetings, please comply with 
the basic guidelines below. 

1. The Board President will chair the meeting. 
 

2. Any resident or visitor wishing to address the Board, an individual Board member or a guest presenter, 
must direct their questions and comments to the President at the appropriate time or at the 
President’s invitation. 
 

3. The Board will hear a resident's or visitors comments only after the President has recognized the 
individual to speak. 
 

4. Speakers are asked to state their name for the public record.  
 

5. Speakers will be allowed three minutes and may not yield their time to other speakers. 
 

6. Persons wishing to speak for a second time may do so with the consent of the President, only after all 
others have had an opportunity to address the Board. 
 

7. Please refrain from comment or question at a Public Hearing until the presentation has been 
completed. 
 

8. At the discretion of the Chair, you may be asked to submit your question in writing on a 3 x 5 card and 
you will receive a written response with one week of the hearing. 

The President will strive to allow all residents and visitors equal opportunity to address the Board. In general the 
Board will not comment or respond to issues requiring Board consideration until the issue has been reviewed by 
the Board/staff. 

The Board often has a full business agenda and must complete the work of the Park District at scheduled 
meetings. Please do not repeat comments or questions that have already been made by others and please do 
not interrupt commissioners or other speakers. 

 

Updated 1/23/18 

 

4



Revenues, Expenses, Capitals Summary YTD
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

• $1,203,300 below YTD budget
• Tennis $368,841 above YTD budget
• Golf Course Play $81,390 above YTD budget
• Rec Program Fees $296,504 above YTD budget

Operating Revenues

• Cash Donations of $17,837
• Other Contributions of $64,770
• Elder/Cent. donations will be well below budget

Non-Operating 
Revenues

$ 426,857 below YTD budget
• Salaries/Wages $195,599 below YTD budget
• Supplies $142,567 below YTD budget
• Repairs and Maintenance $43,373 below YTD budget

Operating Expenses

• Operating Capitals $685,926 below YTD budget
• Major Capitals $160,262 above YTD budget

Capitals

2
5



Individual Fund Performance Actual vs Budget YTD
August 2022

9,
06

6

2,
20

2

2,
61

6

18
9

9,
69

0

3,
48

7

2,
53

6

17
2

7,
61

6

3,
11

2

1,
55

5

0

7,
46

3

2,
13

0

1,
92

3

0

-6
23

-1
,2

85

80 1715
3

98
1

-3
68

0

A LL  F UND S GENERA L  F UND REC  F UND MIS C F UND

Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD Budget Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD Budget Revenue Variance Expense Variance
*Numbers in 1000’s*

3
6



Individual Fund Performance Actual vs Budget YTD
August 2022

1,
52

9

12
0

1,
94

4

65
5

1,
45

4

99

1,
55

9

55
5

1,
27

3

10
7

1,
07

0

50
0

1,
40

2

10
4

1,
20

5

69
8

75 22

38
5

10
0

-1
30

3

-1
35

-1
98

GO LF  F UND PA D D LE F UND TENNIS  F UND ICE  A RENA  F UND

Rev YTD Actual Rev YTD Budget Exp YTD Actual Exp YTD Budget Revenue Variance Expense Variance
*Numbers in 1000’s*

4
7



Previous Years Comparison 
All Funds Combined – Unaudited 
August 2022

2020 YTD 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 
Actual

2022 YTD 
Budget

2022 YTD 
Bud vs Act

Revenues
YTD $9,395,342 $9,751,469 $10,037,215 $11,240,515 ($1,203,300)

Expenses
YTD $5,900,843 $6,750,224 $6,641,277 $7,068,134 ($426,857)

Capitals & 
Contracts
YTD

$1,314,143 $2,479,835 $947,989 $1,620,233 ($672,244)

Surplus/
Deficit
YTD

$2,180,356 $521,410 $2,447,949 $2,552,148 ($104,199)

5
8



Year End Projections 
All Funds Combined – Unaudited 
August 2022

2022
Budget

2022 Year End
Projection

2022
Bud vs Pro

Revenues $17,889,322 $11,094,322 ($6,795,000)

Expenses $10,312,308 $10,069,508 ($242,800)

Capitals/Contracts $12,609,335 $2,498,060 ($10,111,275)

Surplus/Deficit ($5,032,321) ($1,473,246) $3,559,075

6
9



Revenues - Detail YTD
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

2020 YTD 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 
Actual

2022 YTD 
Budget

2022 YTD 
Bud vs Act

% of YTD
Budget

Taxes $5,311,474 $3,148,543 $3,550,279 $5,975,585 ($2,425,306) 59%

User Fees $3,333,972 $4,651,195 $4,655,280 $3,992,027 $663,253 117%

Rec Fees $445,628 $887,635 $1,196,483 $899,979 $296,504 133%

Interest $65,919 $6,547 $60,808 $29,997 $30,811 203%
Misc. $141,510 $293,666 $380,888 $220,293 $160,595 173%
Pro Shop $89,725 $123,050 $110,870 $115,969 ($5,099) 96%
Donations $7,114 $640,833 $82,607 $6,665 $75,942 1239%
Total $9,395,342 $9,751,469 $10,037,215 $11,240,515 ($1,203,300) 89%

7
10



Revenues - User Fees 
Performance vs. Budget YTD 
August 2022

• $631,146 above YTD budgetOverall User Fees
• $43,035 above YTD budgetAthletic Fields
• $ 840 above YTD budgetSailing
• $1,895 above YTD budget Beaches
• $37,417 above YTD budgetBoat Launch
• $81,390 above YTD budgetGolf
• $21,667  above YTD budgetPaddle
• $368,841 above YTD budgetTennis
• $76,061 above YTD budgetIce

8
11



Donations/Contributions
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 YTD

Unrestricted $3,365 $8,872 $14,837

Restricted/Directed $3,749 $631,961 $64,770

Parks $0 $0 $3,647

Beaches $1,290 $178,670 $55,373

Enterprise $2,459 $0 $5,000

Other $0 $453,291 $750

Total $7,114 $640,833 $82,607

9
12



Expenses - Detail YTD
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022 

2020 YTD 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 
Actual

2022 YTD 
Budget

2022 YTD 
Bud vs Act

% of YTD
Budget

Salaries & 
Wages $3,117,509 $3,110,141 $3,267,022 $3,462,621 ($195,599) 94%
Other 
Personnel $737,192 $897,983 $923,554 $1,047,078 ($123,524) 88%
Supplies $369,592 $352,005 $406,580 $549,147 ($142,567) 74%
Repair & 
Maintenance $135,135 $175,751 $153,877 $197,250 ($43,373) 78%
Program & 
Main Services $472,726 $856,506 $592,231 $566,160 $26,071 105%
Corporate
Services $609,269 $776,537 $763,292 $675,860 $87,432 113%
Utilities $401,299 $498,737 $456,311 $485,387 ($29,076) 94%
Pro Shop $58,120 $82,564 $78,410 $84,631 ($6,221) 93%
Total $5,900,843 $6,750,224 $6,641,277 $7,068,134 ($426,857) 94%

10
13



Capitals/Contracts - Detail YTD
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

2020 YTD 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 
Actual

2022 YTD 
Budget

2022 YTD 
Bud vs 

Act

% of YTD 
Budget

Operating
Capitals $114,376 $416,627 $215,431 $901,357 ($685,926) 24%

Major
Capitals $1,000,195 $1,619,447 $363,262 $350,000 $13,262 104%

Contracts 
Payable $265,001 $443,761 $369,296 $368,876 $420 100%

Total $1,314,143 $2,479,835 $944,989 $1,620,233 ($672,244) 59%

11
14



Operating and Major Capitals
All Funds Combined - Unaudited
August 2022

320 417 901 1,000
1,882 1,8621,000 1,619 200 580

10,000

500

2020 YTD 2021 YTD 2022 YTD 
BUDGET

2022 YE 
ESTIMATE

2023 ESTIMATE 2024 ESTIMATE

Operating Major *Numbers in 1000’s*

12
15



Operating Capitals
August 2022

17 0 0

146

59
0

239

34

136
159

262

150

PARKS ATHLETIC 
FIELDS

BEACHES GOLF TENNIS ICE ARENA

2022 Actual YTD FY22 Budget *Numbers in 1000’s*

13
16



Operating Capitals Detail - 25K and above
August 2022

FY2022 Budget Actual Completed?
Parks $468,000

Happ Road Park - Furnishings/Playground $111,000

Nick Corwin Park - Playground $230,000 $238,000 ON ORDER

Northfield Park - Fencing/Gates/Backstop $33,000 $2,764 NO

Equipment - Toro 4000D Mower and Ford F-350 $55,000

Paths and Paving $10,000 $10,595 YES

Athletic Fields $34,000

Beaches    $136,000

Elder Lane Beach House - Pumps/Windows/Paint $50,000

Centennial Park - Sidewalks $58,000

Tower Road Beach House - Pumps/Flooring $28,000

Garage $77,000

Parks Service Center - Painting $30,000

Forklift $30,000

14
17



Operating Capitals Detail - 25K and above
August 2022

FY2022 Budget Actual Completed?
Golf Course/Maintenance $158,500

Cart Barn Roof $30,000

Design Work $25,000 $71,040 YES

Ford Tractor $40,000

Toro Mower $55,319 $55,319 YES

Paddle $10,000 $2,419 YES

Tennis Outdoor $56,000

Pathways $33,000

Tennis Indoor $148,000

Tennis Center Windows/Doors $68,000

Tennis Center Painting $30,000 35,000 PENDING

Radiant Heaters/Boiler $45,000

Ice Arena $150,000

Zamboni $150,000 $0 DEFERRED

15
18



Capitals – Major
August 2022

55 141 21880 500 25080

10,000

0

DRIVING RANGE ELDER/CENTEN NON-BUDGETED

2022 Actual YTD Current FY22 Projection FY22 Budget *Numbers in 1000’s*

16
19



Fund Reserves 2022
August 2022

557 586 456 569 448 478

712
807

1,398 1,465

2,226

2,412

617
299

GEN 2022 GEN 2023 REC 2022 REC 2023 GO LF  2022 GO LF  2023

Minimum Restricted Available *Numbers in 1000’s*

17
20



Fund Reserves 2022
August 2022

39 39

370 394

170 208
20 20

142 151

834

1,000

1,107

299

PA D D LE 2022 PA D D LE 2023 TENNIS  2022 TENNIS  2023 ICE  2022 ICE  2023

Minimum Restricted Available *Numbers in 1000’s*

18
21



Statement of Cash and Investments
August 2022

Cash
•Petty Cash $        1,700.57 
•BMO Harris Bank – Holiday Savings $      1,8232.48 
•Illinois Funds $      79,212.74 
•N Corwin Fund $      38,245.43 
•BMO Harris Bank – Operating $    150,054.80 
•BMO Harris Bank – Money Market $3,261,373.38 
•BMO Harris Bank – Payroll $    196,425.90 

Total Cash $ 3,745,245.30 
Investments

•IPDLAF 365-day TERM account
•IPDLAF 270-day TERM account

$3,000,000.00
$1,000,000.00

•IPDLAF – 2020 Bond Proceeds $2,636,724.62 
•IPDLAF – Money Market $2,542,984.63 
•Wintrust Community Bank Money Market $4,095,118.17 
•Wintrust Community Bank CD

Total Investments
$14,274,827.42 

Total Cash and Investments $18,020,072.72 19

$1,000,000.00

22



 BOARD SUMMARY     

 WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT     
      

Date: Thursday, September 22, 2022     
To: Board of Commissioners     

Subject: Vouchers for Approval     
From: James Crocker, Superintendent of Finance    

Summary: For your approval please find below a list of vouchers from Aug 11-Sept 15, 2022.  
      
      

  BY FUND      
FUND DESCRIPTION AMOUNT    

01 General / Payroll $   254,102.31    
10 Recreation $   159,306.68    
20 Golf Operations  $     43,007.51    
23 Platform Tennis $       4,642.80    
25 Tennis $     16,127.40    
27 Indoor Ice Arena $     39,903.01    
31 Special Recreation $               0.00    
32 Worker's Comp $               0.00    
33 IMRF Pension & FICA $     69,226.70    
34 Audit Fund $               0.00       
35 Liability Fund $       2,729.90        
37 Capital Projects $       8,913.00     

  Grand Total $  597,959.31    
      

  BY CATEGORY      
CATEGORY DESCRIPTION AMOUNT    

52 Supplies $       65,781.90    
54 Other Personnel Costs $       76,710.81    
54 Program & Maintenance Services $     152,441.91    
54 Corporate Services $       71,211.03    
56 Repair and Maintenance $       25,683.88      

565 Utilities $       69,602.17    
60 Capital Projects $         8,731.47    
62 Contracts Payable $                 0.00    
21 Employee Payroll Contributions $     127,796.14    

  Grand Total $     597,959.31    
      
The payment of the above listed accounts has been accepted by the Park District Board of  
 Commissioners at their meeting held on September 22, 2022.    
 

     
 

     

____________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________  

(Treasurer)  (Secretary)    
 23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Winnetka Park District 
Board Summary 

 
Date:   September 22, 2022 

To:   Board of Commissioners 

Subject:  Equipment Replacement 

From:  Michal Slezak, Interim Golf Course Superintendent 

Through: Costa Kutulas, Director of Parks and Maintenance  

Summary: 
During the 2022 budgeting process, the golf course staff identified the need to replace (1) 
1992 Ford tractor, which has served the golf course for more than 30 years. Staff identified 
John Deere 4052R Compact Utility Tractor as the best replacement option. 
 
As presented during the 2022 budget process, this piece of equipment was identified for 
replacement through the long range plan as approved in the 2022 budget (Capitals). 
 
The current tractor is used as a multipurpose tractor for the championship course and the par-3 
course. The versatility of this John Deere tractor will allow us to mow rough, aerify fairways, 
blow off fairways, and also will be very helpful when projects, such as storm water, arise. 
 
Revel’s Turf & Tractor Inc. submitted a quote via Sourcewell Grounds Maintenance for (1) “John 
Deere 4052R Compact Utility Tractor” with a gross delivered price of $37,917.19. The budget 
amount for this item is $40,000, a difference of $2,082.81.  No trade-in is being considered at 
this time, due to the mechanical problems. Staff feels it will better serve the agency to keep 
the 1992 Ford tractor as a parts unit to help maintain the other Ford 2120 tractor.  
 
Sourcewell is a cooperative purchasing organization serving national, state, county, city and 
local governmental agencies. Winnetka Park District is registered with Sourcewell.  Purchasing 
through Sourcewell allows staff to order the unit at a greater cost savings to the District 
without having to go through the formal bid process. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Park Board approve the purchase of (1) new “2022 John Deere 
4052R Compact Utility Tractor” from Revel’s Turf & Tractor Inc. of Elgin, Illinois with the 
configuration shown on the quote as presented through the Sourcewell bid for the net price of 
$37,917.19. 
 
END 

39



Quotes of equipment offered through contracts between Deere & Company, its divisions 
and subsidiaries (collectively “Deere”) and government agencies are subject to audit and 
access by Deere's Strategic Accounts Business Division to ensure compliance with the 
terms and conditions of the contracts.

 Vendor: Deere & Company    
 2000 John Deere Run   
 Cary, NC 27513

 Signature on all LOIs and POs with a 
signature line
 Contract name or number; or JD Quote ID 

 Sold to street address (no PO box)

 Bill to email address (required to send the invoice and/or to obtain the tax  
exemption certificate

Customer: 
  
Quotes are valid for 30 days from the creation date or upon contract 
expiration, whichever occurs first. 
  
A Purchase Order (PO) or Letter of Intent (LOI) including the below 
information is required to proceed with this sale. The PO or LOI will be 
returned if information is missing.

David Kloss

Revels Turf and Tractor, LLC
180 Corporate Drive
Elgin, IL 60123

Tel:  847-683-4653
Fax:  847-683-3978
Email: dkloss@revelstractor.com

For any questions, please contact:

 Ship to street address (no PO box)

 Bill to contact name and phone number

 Bill to address

Membership number if required by the contract

40



ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT  
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Revels Turf and Tractor, LLC
180 Corporate Drive
Elgin, IL 60123
 847-683-4653
revtrac@revelstractor.com

Confidential

Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Quote Summary

Prepared For:
WINNETKA GOLF CLUB
510 GREEN BAY RD
WINNETKA, IL 60093
Business:  847-716-3576
HMICHNA@WINPARK.ORG

Delivering Dealer:
Revels Turf and Tractor, LLC

David Kloss
180 Corporate Drive

Elgin, IL 60123
Phone:  847-683-4653

dkloss@revelstractor.com

 Quote ID: 27341826
29 August 2022
30 August 2022

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 16 September 2022

Equipment Summary Suggested List Selling Price Qty Extended

JOHN DEERE 4052R Compact 
Utility Tractor (40 PTO hp)

$ 46,240.46 $ 37,917.19 X 1 = $ 37,917.19

Contract: Sourcewell Grounds Maintenance 031121-DAC (PG NB CG 70)
Price Effective Date: August 28, 2022

Equipment Total $ 37,917.19

* Includes Fees and Non-contract items Quote Summary

Equipment Total $ 37,917.19

Trade In 
SubTotal $ 37,917.19
Est. Service 
Agreement Tax

$ 0.00

Total $ 37,917.19
Down Payment (0.00)
Rental Applied (0.00)
Balance Due $ 37,917.19

41



Quote Id: 27341826 Customer Name: WINNETKA GOLF CLUB

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Revels Turf and Tractor, LLC
180 Corporate Drive
Elgin, IL 60123
 847-683-4653
revtrac@revelstractor.com

JOHN DEERE 4052R Compact Utility Tractor (40 PTO hp)
Hours:
Stock Number:
Contract: Sourcewell Grounds Maintenance 031121-DAC 

(PG NB CG 70)
Price Effective Date: August 28, 2022

Suggested List *
$ 46,240.46
Selling Price *
$ 37,917.19

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items
Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 

Amount
Contract 

Price
Extended 
Contract 

Price
0369LV 4052R Compact Utility 

Tractor (40 PTO hp)
1 $ 42,597.00 18.00 $ 7,667.46 $ 34,929.54 $ 34,929.54

Standard Options - Per Unit
0202 United States 1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
0409 English Operator's Manual 

and Decal Kit
1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1520 eHydro™ 1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
1795 Less Loader 1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
2005 Open Station with Deluxe 

Seat
1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

2650 Less Radio 1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
4061 Less iMatch™ Quick Hitch 

Category 1
1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

5090 Less Wheel Spacer 1 $ 0.00 18.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00
5253 22.50LLx16.1 (6PR, R3 Turf 

Special, 1 Position)
1 $ 673.00 18.00 $ 121.14 $ 551.86 $ 551.86

6253 27x12LL-15 (6PR, R3 Turf 
Special, 2 Position)

1 $ 95.00 18.00 $ 17.10 $ 77.90 $ 77.90

Standard Options Total $ 768.00 $ 138.24 $ 629.76 $ 629.76
Dealer Attachments/Non-Contract/Open Market

LVU32113 Quik-Tatch Weight, 70 lb (32 
kg)

10 $ 127.33 18.00 $ 22.92 $ 1,044.10 $ 1,044.10

BLV10442 Front Weight Bracket 
Extension Kit

1 $ 302.30 18.00 $ 54.41 $ 247.89 $ 247.89

LVB25705 Front Quik-Tatch™ Weight 
Kit

1 $ 55.97 18.00 $ 10.07 $ 45.90 $ 45.90

BLV10050 4th and 5th Selective 
Control Valve Kit (OOS 
Only)

1 $ 1,243.89 18.00 $ 223.90 $ 1,019.99 $ 1,019.99

42



Quote Id: 27341826 Customer Name: WINNETKA GOLF CLUB

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Revels Turf and Tractor, LLC
180 Corporate Drive
Elgin, IL 60123
 847-683-4653
revtrac@revelstractor.com

Dealer Attachments Total $ 2,875.46 $ 517.58 $ 2,357.88 $ 2,357.88

Value Added Services 
Total

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Total Selling Price $ 46,240.46 $ 8,323.28 $ 37,917.18 $ 37,917.18

43



 

Page 1 of 10 
 

WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD 

MEETING OF THE COMMISSIONERS AND OFFICERS  
OF THE WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT, WINNETKA, IL 

THURSDAY, JUNE 9, 2022  
 

 
President James called the special meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Commissioners Present: Mickey Archambault, Warren James, Cynthia Rapp, Colleen Root, 
David Seaman 
 
Commissioners Absent: Christina Codo and Eric Lussen 
 
Staff Present: John Peterson, Executive Director; Kyle Berg, Superintendent of Recreation; 
Molly Krohe, Marketing/Brand Manager; Libby Baker, Office Associate; Ania Cramer, 
Community Outreach/Business Development 
 
Staff Present Via Zoom:  Costa Kutulas 
 
Audience Present:   Rob Apatoff, Vicki Apatoff, Elisa Bartels, Beth Bishop, Kitty Bliss,  Carl 
Buccellato, Kate Casale MacNally, Rowan MacNally, Eve MacNally, Helen Cassin, T. 
Charbonneau,  Patrick Coonan, Susan Curry, Layla Danley, Lucas Day, Amanda Day, Arabella 
Day, Chuck Dowding, Sheila Duran, Rick Duran, Cece Durbin, Tim Earle, Peter Eatherton, 
Chris Eilers, Philip Enquist, Rebecca Ferguson, Marc Garrison, Mary Garrison, Sid Glenn, 
Lynn Golden, Kimberly Handler, Pat Heraty, Stephanie Heraty, Susan Hering, Mary Hickey, 
Lynn Jackson, Tom J., Joanna Karatzas, Laura Kastelic, Tom Kehoe, Judy Kehoe, Marianne 
Klein, Elizabeth Lane, Carl Lane, Brian Liechtz,  Anne Madden, Kim Marsh, Essie Mitchell, 
Sherry Molitor, Cha McDaniel,  Beth Mulhern, Lori Mulhern, Alexandra Nichols, Brenna 
Nichols, Robin Oldfield, Bridget Orsic, Holly Raddon,  Mike Ray, John Root,  Jon Shabica,  
Jean B. Schreiber, Rob Schriesheim, G. Seiler, Nanci Shirrell, Don Smith, Irene Smith, Susan 
Snyder, David Stevens, Katie Stevens, Arthur Tokarczyk, Sally Tomlinson,  Rick Ufford, Joan 
Vatz, Linda & Allen Welch, Randy Whitchurch, Peggy Wise, Ted Wynnychenko 
 
Audience Present Via Zoom:  Amy Boyer, Senator Laura Fine, Stephanie Heraty, Rebecca’s 
iPhone, Bob Dearborn, Connie Henry, Julie Peterson, Ben Isabel, Laura Hill, Amy’s iPhone, 
Judith’s iPad 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
Commissioner Rapp requested Agenda Item 4. a – “Video Recording of Board Meetings” be 
moved to “New Business”, and “Review of Public Documents on the Website” be added to 

44



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

“New Business”. 
 
Commissioner Root stated she might want to make some remarks, as well as a make a 
motion under “New Business”. 
 
REMARKS FROM VISITORS 
Ted Wynnychenko expressed disappointment with what has happened so far.  He feels the 
information is designed to steer people away from public access. 
 
David Stevens expressed astonishment the plan has progressed this far.  He thanked the 
board for their long-term vision, but questioned the effect of this plan on the community. 
 
Rob Schriesheim thanked the board for their efforts to beautify the beach but expressed 
opposition to the wall, stating no such wall exists anywhere. 
 
Chuck Dowding thanked the audience for their participation and the board for their efforts 
to join the beaches.  He shared slides of the lakefront giving an analysis of lake levels. Mr. 
Dowding said he would like to see development happen, but without the wall.  He asked the 
board to look for other solutions. (see attached) 
 
Irene Smith read a statement and requested it be included in the minutes.  Her statement 
posed several questions to the board.  (see attached) 
 
Kate Casale MacNally thanked the board for their dedication.  She expressed support of 
development of the beaches, but not a wall.  She requested the board reconsider the design. 
 
Rob Apatoff stated he is an advocate of joining the beaches, but does not understand the 
efforts to move forward considering the opposition.  He noted he has never seen such an 
issue in the community as big as this. 
 
Brenna Nichols expressed her opposition to the project, stating no one wants this to happen.  
She stated the wealth of one individual should not dictate the actions of the entire 
community.  Ms. Nichols asked the board to terminate the land swap. 
 
Pat Heraty expressed his view there are members of the board who are not considering the 
long-term consequences. He asked if the board wants their legacy to be walls on the beach. 
 
Joanne Karatzas inquired if there has been a site line analysis from the lifeguard chairs for 
monitoring children in the lake.   
 
Katie Stevens expressed strong opposition to the project, specifically the walls.  She 

45



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

reiterated a statement made by Commissioner James at a previous meeting that the plan 
would go through without the wall. Ms. Stevens commented on the opposition expressed 
from the Village board and the community.  She concluded by saying the lakefront is not for 
sale, riparian rights go to the water, and the process has not been transparent. 
 
Rebecca Ferguson reported the petition now has 1,302 signatures.  She expressed her 
disbelief the board is still discussing the project when there is such opposition.  Ms. Ferguson 
stated the community wants to understand the motive if there is one so assumptions are not 
made.  She requested the board drop the land swap and submitted the petition to Park 
District attorney Steve Adams. 
 
Phil Enquist referenced a 1918 quote from Montgomery Ward, “the lakefront is a common 
to remain forever open, clear and free of any buildings, or other obstruction whatever.” He 
stated we have a responsibility for future generations to keep the lake open clear and free 
of all obstructions, noting the elevations of the wall are not justifiable. 
 
Lori Mulhern echoed previous comments and expressed support of the plan but not the wall, 
adding it would set a precedent.  She requested the board table the project.  
 
Lynn Golden thanked other speakers and urged residents to continue sharing information 
and working together to stop the plan. 
 
Mark Garrison thanked the board for their stewardship.  He expressed confusion with the 
boards’ support of the project and design. He questioned whether blocking views of the 
lakefront is good stewardship. 
 
Lisa (last name indistinguishable) expressed her opinion that the walls are an abomination, 
and having steel in the lake is against nature.  
 
Stephanie Heraty read a statement on behalf of resident Judy Rauh. (see attached)  
 
Susan Hering stated she lives in Winnetka because of the lakefront. She said open green 
space should not contain large metal structures. 
 
Mary Garrison shared history about 261 Sheridan Road property stating the Park District had 
an opportunity to purchase the property 20 years ago but the community said no to an 
advisory referendum.  She stated the land swap is a good idea but the design is not, and it 
is obvious the community is not interested. 
 
Amy H. (last name indistinguishable) stated it is clear to her the residents do not want the 
walls. She said it feels as if the interests of the community are not being accurately reflected. 

46



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

Cece Durbin expressed appreciation for the board’s efforts. The board should be able to 
figure out something the residents will like and that is in the best interest of the village. Ms. 
Durbin asked the board to listen to the community. 
 
Carl Buccelatto echoed comments made previously, adding residents do not want Winnetka 
to be a town of walls.  He asked the board to reflect on the comments made by residents. 
 
Kimberly Handler echoed sentiments previously shared, and added she hopes the board 
takes this decision seriously, as it is a legacy decision. 
 
Vicki Apatoff stated every time she attends a meeting information is shared that had not 
been previously presented.  She thanked the board for recording the meeting.  Ms. Apatoff 
explained some families are too busy to learn about project, and requested the board take 
the presentations to the people.  
 
Alexandra Nichols stated all the comments made have been very thoughtful and caring.  She 
is appalled the plan has changed from the previously approved plan and hopes the board 
will do the right thing. 
 
Joan Vatz stated her entire family objects to the plans and hopes the board is listening to 
the community. 
 
Peter Eatherton thanked the audience for their comments. He referenced the Park District 
mission and asked the board to follow the mission, listen to the community, and reassess 
plan. 
 
Chris Eilers questioned if has anyone has considered lifesaving measures given the walls in 
the proposed design. 
 
Mary Hickey expressed opposition and urged the board to find a practical solution; the park 
is beautiful and should stay that way with unobstructed views. 
 
Rick Ufford shared an example of a difficult negotiation and the positive impact of the 
resulting decision.  He stated a dollar value cannot be placed on views of the lake, and asked 
the board to recognize the intrinsic value of the lake. 
 
Commissioner James thanked the audience for their comments. 
There was a short break from 7:40 pm – 7:45 pm. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS 
Executive Director Peterson acknowledged several emails and news articles included in the 

47



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

packet, as well as items received after the packet was posted.  He noted the packet on the 
website would be updated to include these items once the personal information was 
redacted.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Petition Requesting Removal of Metal Barriers from Elder + Centennial Beach Plan 
Executive Director Peterson explained the petition in the packet was given to the board at 
the May 26, 2022 meeting. 
 
Commissioner Seaman commended the audience for caring.  He stated their input is a critical 
part of the process.  
 
Commissioner Rapp noted more than 1,300 people signed the petition which is more than 
the number of people who completed the Caucus survey. It is a sign for the board to listen. 
 
Commissioner Root said the board should take the time to read and acknowledge the work 
done by Rebecca Ferguson to educate the community about how to submit public comments 
to administrative agencies. She added it is the Park District’s responsibility to provide this 
information on how and where the public should send comments relative to the WPD’s 
outstanding applications with the Army Corp and IDNR.  
 
Commissioner James acknowledged the petition and number of signatures.  He expressed 
his respect for the objections but wished the petition represented the louver design more 
fairly.   
 
Commissioner Rapp asked if Vicki Apatoff’s email would be read for the record, as requested.  
Executive Director Peterson replied the concerns raised by Ms. Apatoff are being addressed 
and her letter will be added to the board packet along with other communications.  
 
Pending IDNR/USACE Breakwater Permit Application/Public Related to the Project 
Commissioner James told the audience the board is listening to all comments.  He noted the 
board would not be taking any action at this meeting given the absence of two board 
members. Commissioner James informed the audience that all documents reviewed at the 
meeting would be added to the website. 
 
Commissioner James explained this discussion began in 2020, prior to Commissioners Root 
and Rapp joining the board.   Commissioner Root clarified that upon joining the board she 
asked to review all files related to the property exchange.  She explained that despite her 
efforts the Park file provided for her review was incomplete. There was no way to come up 
to speed. There were no diagrams, plans, or evidence of design in the file.  

48



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

Commissioner James began a review and explanation of prior board presentations with the 
intent to explain the evolution of the design.  Slides dated April 8, 2021, May 12, 2021, May 
18, 2021, June 2, 2021, August 26, 2021 and September 9, 2021 were reviewed and 
discussed. 
 
Commissioner Rapp noted her attendance at the April 8, 2021 Zoom meeting and asked to 
listen to the audio recordings of the open and closed meetings of April 8, 2021.   
 
Commissioner Seaman asked if the slides were on the website. Commissioner Root asked 
why the diagram from April 8, 2021 was not part of the minutes of that meeting.  She 
added she has made several requests to add documents to the website, noting they still 
have not been posted.  She expressed concern the Park District is not being transparent.   
 
Commissioner Seaman read a statement expressing his view on the process (see attached).  
He added it is presumptuous of Commissioner James to state the board would not make any 
decisions at this meeting. Commissioner James clarified his remark saying he wanted the 
audience to know the board would not be making any decisions to move forward. 
Upon being asked the purpose of showing the slides, Commissioner James responded he is 
trying to show the history of the process. 
 
Commissioners Seaman, Rapp and Root each stated they had not previously seen some of 
the presentations being shown, adding they should have been in the meeting records.   
 
Commissioner Root questioned the status of the property exchange agreement, referring to 
Section 4 of the agreement. She pointed out the Park District does not have the deed to the 
property.  Commissioner Root noted the minutes of November 2020 show work had begun 
on design plans.  The minutes also reflect a joint effort to work on the design.  Commissioner 
Root questioned the authority of ongoing negotiations without a valid contract.  
 
Park District attorney Adams addressed Commissioner Root’s points and shared his belief 
the contract is still in effect.   He added the negotiations related to the breakwater design 
are separate from the contract. 
 
Discussion continued with Commissioners Root, Rapp and Seaman expressing frustration 
with the process, perceived lack of transparency, need for confidentiality, ongoing 
expenditures, and no property deed. Commissioner James explained reiterated there were 
certain things that could not be discussed publicly.   
 
The slide review continued, showing the evolution of the plan design and the thought 
processes employed.  Commissioners Seaman, Rapp and Root questioned the need to discuss 
the process, and expressed their disinterest in continuing to review the slides.  

49



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Commissioner James referenced the August 2021 board meeting, noting it focused on the 
dog beach and efforts to relocate the dog beach.  The result was the formation of a dog 
beach advisory committee. 
 
Commissioner Root referenced the August 26, 2021 minutes and clarified her recollection 
of the discussion surrounding the motions made at that meeting. 
 
Commissioner Seaman again expressed his disinterest in continuing to review the slides. 
 
Commissioner James continued his review of slides depicting pictures of properties with 
fences along the lakeshore.  He noted each state interprets the Public Trust Doctrine 
differently as it pertains to public access.  Commissioner Root noted many of the fences 
were installed after a permit was obtained. 
 
Commissioner James responded to a question from Susan Curry about the mechanical 
benefit of louvers above the rock.   Benefits include erosion control, keeping dogs and 
humans on public property, and fall protection. 
 
Commissioner Root made a motion for the Winnetka Park District to withdraw its joint 
applications for permit currently pending with the Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
and the United States Army Corps of Engineers so that we can review the design that has 
been requested for permit, and that we can incorporate the desires and comments that have 
been very well vocalized by this community. Commissioner Rapp seconded the motion.   
 
Commissioner James then made a motion to table the previous motion so all board members 
could have the opportunity to speak. Commissioner Archambault seconded the motion.    
 
Park District attorney Steve Adams clarified the priority of motions, noting the motion to 
table the previous motion takes precedence over the initial motion. 
 
Commissioner Root stated she made her motion because she feels there is a need to sever 
the joint filing of applications.  She questioned the legitimacy of the agreement, and 
expressed interest in a bilateral agreement.  
 
Park District attorney Adams explained he has deferred his interpretation of the contract to 
preserve the rights of the board.  
 
A roll call vote was taken on Commissioner James’ motion to table the motion to withdraw 
the joint application for permit. 
Ayes: Archambault, James  
Nays: Rapp, Root, Seaman 

50



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Motion failed 
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Seaman, Park District attorney Adams 
explained the Park District could unilaterally withdraw the application for permit, but there 
may be implications. 
 
Commissioner Archambault acknowledged the Park District would still have the option to 
remove the wall from the design if the permit was approved.  He suggested the board wait 
on a motion to withdraw the permit.   
 
Park District attorney Adams recommended the board wait until after closed session to vote 
on withdrawing the permit.  Commissioner James asked the board to consider waiting.  
Commissioner Seaman replied he does not want to wait. 
 
Commissioner James explained both the north and south groin are on park district property.  
With or without the center property, the groins could be built, consistent with the lakefront 
plan.  Commissioner James asked the board to allow him to make an alternate motion to 
remove the louvers. His request was denied by Commissioners Root, Rapp and Seaman.  A 
roll call vote was taken on Commissioner Root’s motion to withdraw the joint application 
for permit. 
Ayes: Rapp, Root, Seaman 
Nays: Archambault, James 
Motion carried 
 
Commissioner Seaman made a motion to begin Agenda Item 7, “Remarks from Visitors”.  
Commissioner Root seconded the motion.  By a voice vote, motion carried 
 
REMARKS FROM VISITORS 
Mary Garrison stated the safety issues at Elder should be addressed. 
 
Rob Apatoff acknowledged the difficult position of the board and stated all the work will 
pay off in the end. 
 
Rick Duran referenced a private Malibu homeowner inaccurately representing a private 
beach, and the resulting lawsuit.  He acknowledged certain states have different 
interpretations than Illinois of the Public Trust Doctrine and inquired why the board would 
try to create a private beach without public access.   Mr. Duran noted the idea of selling the 
public’s trust in closed session and understanding the process better should not be the 
purpose of this meeting. 
 
Joanna Karatzas questioned the hydraulic purpose of the proposed fence, referencing a 

51



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

previous statement from Commissioner James that the fence was to minimize the amount 
of stone used. 
 
John Root questioned the justification for planting trees, noting they would also be a visual 
barrier.  
 
Name indistinguishable -  said the drawings show no indication of the location of the water 
intake.  He suggested new pipes be installed. 
 
Krysia Miller stated limited input was received for the development of the lakefront 
masterplan. She questioned the amount of money to be spent, and expressed her opinion 
there only needs to be a groin on the south to capture sand. Ms. Miller suggested more sand 
be brought in to create a natural beach. 
 
Chuck Dowding questioned why a breakwater like the one at Lloyd would not be replicated 
at Centennial given the success at Lloyd.  He asked the board to revisit the 2030 plan. 
 
Katie Stevens expressed her feelings about the process, saying the community, and several 
members of the board, feel there was no transparency about the louvers. She questioned 
how the permit could be submitted for a plan when the public did not know there was a 
plan, and the design information was not made available. Ms. Stevens stated it is likely that 
many people would support a new plan without a fence.  
 
Mary Garrison commented on the design of the Kenilworth beach and the amount of sand. 
 
Michelle Kachevsky spoke on behalf of the young people who could not sign the petition, 
but opposed the proposed design.  
 
Vicki Apatoff expressed her gratitude to the three board members who spoke up against the 
plan.  She said Commissioner James should not takes this personally, stating she and others 
only want what is best for Winnetka. 
 
Commissioner James expressed his passion for the project.  He only wanted the board to 
take a time out to give Mr. Ishbia the opportunity to do the right thing. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Commissioner Seaman made a motion at 9:30 p.m. to adjourn the special meeting. 
Commissioner Root seconded the motion.   A roll call vote was taken.  
Ayes: Archambault, James, Rapp, Root, Seaman 
Nays: None 
Motion carried 

52



Special Meeting Minutes 
June 9, 2022 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

The following documents are attached and included in the minutes of this meeting: 
• Petition Requesting the Removal of Metal Barriers from the Elder + Centennial Beach Plan, 

dated June 9, 2022 
• Presentation and pictures submitted to the Board by Chuck Dowding June 9, 2022 
• Comments submitted to the Board by Irene Smith June 9, 2022 
• Comments submitted to the Board on behalf of Judy Rauh June 9, 2022 
• Comments submitted to the Board by Commissioner David Seaman June 9, 2022 
• Comments submitted to the Board by Rob Schriesheim June 9, 2022 

 
 
 
 
_________________________________________   ____________________________________ 
John Peterson, Board Secretary    Date Approved 

53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



Lake level 580 on 31 May according to ACE
According to spread sheet apparently used by Lakota the top of louvers was 596 at 40 feet out from wall by the stairs 
Thus the top of the louvers at person in lower photo is 16 feet above the person’s feet (the red line) & 11 feet above 585 
The upper drawing was probably an earlier plan as I’m sure there have been many. 

596

585

Analysis of information in petition

95



Much of the movie was produced with a view 
from an elevation that is greater than 1500 feet above the water
When the beach is shown in Google Earth with the encircled beach house of a similar size
Google Earth indicates that the elevation of the viewer is at 1623 feet. 

96



Planting Beds (Boxes) are artificial fill onto which the 6.5 ft fence will be  added.
This artificial fill violates the Village Fence Ordenance which states 
fences may be no higher than 6.5 feet above the natural grade
Other forms of fill in project include the rubble stone piles and trucked in sand

97



At the 26 May meeting, 
the  view from the boardwalk was described as allowing a view along the beach
It appears the boardwalk is some 6 feet above the beach probably around 585 + 6 = 591  
20 Feet out from the back of the boardwalk the top of the louver is 596
Thus even on the elevated board walk the long shore view will still be blocked  

98



Description of the top elevation of the louvers at south boundary 
employed to produce drawing of the wavy top of the louvers
A beach elevation of 587 does not match the 585 elevation in Shabica Figure 8 in slide 7 

99



Guard rails (Louvers) are 6.5 feet high and 
sit on top of the planter boxes or rubble stone piles for 
a combined height of 13 feet above the original  ground surface or 
10 to 12 feet above trucked in sand, which will bring the beach elevation up to 585
According to Figure 8 of Shabica  

100



Plan of beach fill (?) as of 11 April 2022. 
Sand-water edge is currently at 580 as shown in first slide

585

101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



 1 

         
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:   Fellow WPD Board Commissioners and John Peterson, Executive Director 
 
FROM: Cynthia Rapp, Commissioner 
 
DATE:  September 22, 2022 
 
RE: Proposed Board Approval Process for Elder and Centennial 

Improvements or Elder Centennial Maintenance Projects 
 
 
During the July 21, 2022 Regular Board/COW meeting and the August,18, 2022 
Regular Board/COW meeting, we discussed the approval process for major projects in 
excess of $250K, specifically in the context of the Elder-Centennial project. 
 
At the September 8, 2022 meeting, we discussed the following motion as it relates to 
beach and park maintenance and/or improvements at Elder and Centennial.  Please 
find the language for the proposed motion below for further discussion. 
 
I move that the Board adopt the following approval checkpoints in connection with 
beach and park maintenance or improvements at Elder and Centennial: 
 

1) Summary to be provided to the Board by the Executive Director/Staff of work 
product and costs by vendor/consultant for completed work through June 6, 2022 
that identifies specifically what work was completed, what work can be reused in 
new plans, what additional work has been done by vendor/consultant since June 
6, 2022 for which we have already incurred costs, and an estimate of additional 
work and costs required to move forward with any plans currently identified for 
further consideration. This should include work on both beachfront improvements 
as well as park plans and bluff restoration.  

 
Exhibit A summarizes costs by vendor through August 10, 2022. 
 

2) Board approval by vote of vendor/consultant contracts and proposals for 
associated design, engineering or other consulting work prior to further project 
expenditures, including permit preparation, construction oversight, stormwater 
engineering, civil engineering, landscape architecture, bluff planning, etc. for all 
vendors/consultants where $25,000 threshold has already been met on this 
project.  
 

206



 2 

 
 

 
Even if WPD has a satisfactory relationship under Policy 5.19, it is encouraged to 
advertise for proposals from other qualified vendors/consultants for additional 
work that is expected to exceed $25,000. A proposal identifying fees in advance 
of engaging the consultant as outlined under Policy 5.19 should be obtained and 
the proposal should be presented to the Board for approval prior to incurring any 
significant costs.   

 
3) Project timeline scenarios should be presented to the Board for discussion 

including potential contingencies as well as optimal timing to secure favorable 
bidding and costs for construction. 
 

4) Board approval by vote of design plan(s) with cost estimates prior to application 
for permit for Elder and Centennial with WPD as the sole permittee. 

 
5) Board review of permit application draft prior to submission for consideration of 

constructive input at a Board meeting. 
 

6) Board approval of winning bidder following bid process for construction. 
 

7) Project costs for all consultants/vendors for the Elder and Centennial projects 
should be reported on separate monthly dashboard summary at future Board 
meetings. Current vendors and consultants should be encouraged to submit 
invoices on a timely basis. 

 
 
Further consideration will be given to the relevant Board Policy Manual sections to 
incorporate changes during the review process, but this motion will supersede the 
Policy Manual for all work related to Elder and Centennial beaches and parks. 
 
  

207



 3 

 
 

 

208



Winnetka Park District 

Board Summary  

 

Date:  September 22, 2022  

 

To:   Winnetka Park District Board of Commissioners  

 

Subject: Resolution No. 22-09-22 authorizing the transfer of property known as Library 

Park to the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District pursuant to the Illinois 

Local Government Property Transfer Act 

 

From:  John Peterson, Executive Director  

  

Summary: 

The Winnetka Park District (“Park District”) and the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 

(“Library”) continue working to complete the sale of Library Park to the Library from the Park 

District. 

 

To complete the sale, the Park District and the Library each need to pass an ordinance or 

resolution adopting and authorizing the transaction.   

 

 For the Library:  During its board meeting scheduled for Monday, September 19, 2022, the 

Library’s Board of Trustees is expected to review and approve an ordinance to acquire 

Library Park.   

 

During its first board meeting scheduled more than 30 days after September 19, 2022, the 

Library’s Board of Trustees is expected to conduct a formal vote to adopt and authorize 

the acquisition of Library Park from the Park District. 

 

 For the Park District:  During its board meeting scheduled for Thursday, September 22, 

2022, the Park District’s Board of Commissioners is expected to conduct a formal vote to 

adopt a resolution and authorize the sale of Library Park to the Library. 

 

Following the Park District board’s approval and the Library board’s approval, the inspection 

and due diligence period for Library Park will begin.  Subject to results of the inspection 

period, the transaction is expected to close in November 2022 – we presently estimate the 

week of Thanksgiving. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends the Winnetka Park District Board of Commissioners votes to approve 

Resolution No. 22-09-22 authorizing the transfer of Library Park to the Winnetka-Northfield 

Public Library District pursuant to the Illinois Local Government Property Transfer Act. 

 

END 

209



1 
 

WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-09-22 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 
FROM THE WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT 

TO THE WINNETKA-NORTHFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
PURSUANT TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROPERTY TRANSFER ACT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District (“Library”) is organized 
for the purposes of owning, operating, and maintaining a library system and the territory 
of the Library lies in part within the corporate limits of the Winnetka Park District (“Park 
District”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnetka Park District owns the property described in Exhibit A 
attached to and by this reference incorporated into this Resolution (“Property”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Library, on September 19, 2022, passed and approved an ordinance 
declaring that it is necessary or convenient for the Library to use, occupy, and improve the 
Property for public purposes and requesting that the Park District transfer the Property to 
the Library, all in accordance with the provisions of the Illinois Local Government Property 
Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/0.01, et seq. (“Property Transfer Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District desire to transfer 
the Property to the Library, pursuant to the authority conferred by the Property Transfer 
Act; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of 
the Winnetka Park District, Cook County and State of Illinois, as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution 
as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 
 
 Section 2. Approval and Authorization for Transfer of Property to Library. The 
Board of Park Commissioners hereby (a) approve transfer of the Property to the Library, 
(b) authorize the Board President to execute a deed to accomplish the transfer, (c) authorize 
the Board Secretary to attest and to seal such deed with the Park District’s corporate seal, 
and (d) authorize the Board President, Board Secretary, Executive Director and Park 
District Attorney to take all other necessary and appropriate actions, in conjunction with 
the necessary and appropriate actions of the Library, to transfer all of the Park District’s 
rights and title in the Property to the Library, on the terms set forth in that certain 
Intergovernmental Agreement, mutually agreed on by the Library and the Park District, 
and attached hereto as Exhibit B, which is also hereby approved. 
 
 Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution will be in full force and effect from and 
after its passage by a vote of two thirds of the members of the corporate authorities now 
holding office and approval. 

210



2 
 

PASSED this _____ day of _______________ 2022. 
 
AYES: 
 
NAYS: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
     APPROVED this _____ day of _______________ 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 By: ________________________________ 
 President, Board of Park Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
  

211



3 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

PROPERTY 
 
 
Parcel I: 
Lot 1, in Winnetka Public Library District Winnetka Park District Plat of Resubdivision, a 
resubdivision of part of Lots 1 and 10 and all of Lots 11, 12, and 13 in Block 36 in Winnetka, being 
a subdivision of the Northeast quarter of Section 20, in Township 42 North, Range 13 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded December 12, 1986 as document 
no. 86595888, in Cook County, Illinois. 
 
Parcel II: 
That part of Lot 2 in Subdivision of Block 36 in Winnetka, that lies Westerly of a line drawn parallel 
with and 75 feet Southwesterly of the Northeasterly line of said lot as measured at right angles 
thereto, in the Northeast quarter of Section 20, Township 42 North, Range 13 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, situated in the Village of Winnetka, in Cook County, Illinois. 
 
P.I.N.s: 05-20-218-022-0000; 05-20-218-023-0000 
 
Common Address: 768 Oak Street, Winnetka, Illinois 60093 
 
 
  

212



4 
 

Exhibit “B” 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 

213



1 

 
 REAL ESTATE SALE CONTRACT 
 
 
 THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT (the "Contract") is made as of the ____ day of 
_________, 2022 between Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District (the "Purchaser") and the 
Winnetka Park District (“Seller”). The Seller and Purchaser are sometimes referred to individually 
as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties.” 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seller is the owner in fee simple of a certain parcel of land located 
adjacent to the Winnetka Library in Winnetka, Illinois, legally described in Exhibit A to this 
contract (the "Property"); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to transfer ownership of the Property in accordance with the 
terms contained herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is being entered pursuant to Article VII, Section 10 of the 
Illinois Constitution, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act 5 ILCS 220/2, and the Local 
Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/1 et seq.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above Recitals, which are incorporated 
herein, and the terms and conditions of the Contract, and other good and valuable consideration, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Property. Seller agrees to sell, and Purchaser agrees to purchase from Seller, all of 
Seller’s right, title and interest in the Property together with all privileges, rights and appurtenances 
thereto, and arrange for conveyance of title to the Purchaser by a recordable warranty deed subject 
only to: 

 
a. Public easements, utility easements, covenants and restrictions of record 

which do not limit the use of the Property for the Purchaser’s purposes; 
 

b. General real estate taxes for the year 2022 and thereafter. 
 

2. Purchase Price. 
 

2.1 The purchase price (“Purchase Price”) to be paid by Purchaser to Seller at closing 
shall be Three Hundred Thirteen Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($313,000.00), plus or minus 
prorations. 
 

2.2 The Purchase Price, when due, shall be payable in cash by cashier’s or bank check 
or by wire transfer providing immediately available funds. 
 

3. Inspection Period. This Contract is contingent on Purchaser’s determination that 
the Property is suitable for Purchaser’s use. Purchaser shall have forty (40) days from the date of 
this Contract to make such determination. If Purchaser, in its sole discretion, determines that the 

214



2 

Property is not suitable for Purchaser’s needs, Purchaser shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract by providing notice in writing to Seller.  To assist the Purchaser, Seller shall provide to 
the Purchaser on or before fourteen (14) days after the effective date of this Contract copies of all 
reports, test results, inspection reports, assessments, evaluations and surveys within Seller's 
possession or control pertaining to the Property. 

 
4. Seller’s Obligations. 

 
4.1 Commitment of Net Sales Proceeds. The Seller warrants to Buyer that it shall 

commit the net proceeds of the transaction contemplated in this Contract to the cost of capital 
improvements at Elder Lane beach or Centennial beach. 

 
4.2 Extension of Resident Rates.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that there are 

residents of Purchaser who are not taxpayers within the Seller’s jurisdiction (“Northfield non-
residents”). For a term of five (5) years (commencing with the first season after Closing, which 
shall be confirmed in writing by the Parties), the Seller shall sell “Beach Season Passes” to 
Northfield non-residents at the same rates charged to Seller’s residents, as established from time 
to time.  Use of the Beach Season Passes by Northfield non-residents shall be subject to the same 
terms and conditions applicable to Seller’s residents. 

 
4.3 The provisions of this Section 4 shall survive Closing and shall not merge with the 

deed upon Closing. 
 

5. Costs; Prorations; Credits. 
 

5.1 Seller shall pay the cost of the title examination of the Subject Property, the 
issuance of the Title Commitment (as defined in Paragraph 6.1), the title insurance premium for 
the title insurance policy issued to Purchaser pursuant to the Title Commitment in the amount of 
the Purchase Price, and any state and county transfer, grantor, documentary stamp or similar taxes 
applicable to this transaction, if any, and all other local municipal transfer taxes pursuant to 
local/municipal ordinances and/or custom. Purchaser shall pay the cost of recording the deed if not 
exempt by local or state law and the cost for any special endorsements (including extended 
coverage), as defined in Paragraph 6.1. Seller and Purchaser shall share equally any escrow charges 
of the Escrow Agent. Each Party shall pay its own attorney’s fees. 
 

5.2 The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Property is currently marked “Exempt” 
in the books of the Chief County Assessment Officer and that no proration for property taxes is 
required.  
 

6. Title. 
 

6.1 Seller shall convey marketable and insurable title for the Subject Property.  The 
Subject Property shall not be subject to any (i) mortgage, deed to secure debt, deed of trust, security 
agreement, judgment, lien or claim of lien, or any other title exception or defect that is monetary 
in nature, Seller hereby agreeing to pay and satisfy of record any such title defects or exceptions 
prior to or at Closing at Seller’s expense, or (ii) any leases, rental agreements or other rights of 

215



3 

occupancy of any kind, whether written or oral (the items described in (i) and (ii) are hereinafter 
referred collectively as the “Seller Defects”).  Seller shall, at the expense of Seller, and within 
thirty (30) days after the Date of this Contract, deliver to Purchaser an Owner’s title insurance 
commitment (“Title Commitment”), issued by First American Title Insurance Company (“Title 
Company”) covering the Subject Property and naming Purchaser as the proposed insured. As to 
any title exceptions or defects affecting the Subject Property Purchaser shall have ten (10) business 
days after receipt of the Title Commitment, to give Notice to Seller of any objections of Purchaser.  
If Purchaser fails to give any Notice to Seller by such date, Purchaser shall be deemed to have 
waived this right to object to any exceptions or defects.  If Purchaser does give Seller Notice of 
objection to any title exceptions or defects, Seller shall have the right for a period of fifteen (15) 
business days after such Notice to cure or satisfy all Seller Defects. If Seller fails or elects not to 
cure any unpermitted title exceptions or defects, then Purchaser may elect to close the transaction 
and take title subject to such exception or to terminate this Contract.  Purchaser shall have the right 
at any time to waive any objections that it may have made and thereby to preserve this Contract in 
effect.  So long as this Contract remains in effect, Seller agrees not to alter or encumber in any 
way the title to the Subject Property.  If a title exception or defect may be cured by the payment of 
funds, the Purchaser may make that payment and deduct it from the Purchase Price. The costs of 
an extended coverage endorsement, if any, shall be the Purchaser’s responsibility. 
 

6.2 As used in Subparagraph 6.1, “insurable title” shall mean title insurable at standard 
rates by the First American Title Insurance Company with a standard ALTA Owner’s title 
insurance policy. 
 

6.3 Any costs associated with closing shall be equally shared by the parties. 
 

7. Closing. The closing or settlement (“Closing”) of the transaction contemplated by 
this Contract shall be within fifteen (15) business days after the end of the Inspection Period 
pursuant to Paragraph 3 of this Contract, or as mutually agreed to by the Parties, but not later than 
November 30, 2022.  Closing shall occur at the First American Title Insurance Company Office 
located nearest the Property or as otherwise mutually agreed between the parties.  
 

8. Right of Entry. From and after the date of this Contract for a period not longer than 
forty (40) days, Seller hereby grants Purchaser, its representatives and agents, the right to enter 
upon the Subject Property to:  (1) examine, inspect and test the feasibility and adaptability of the 
Subject Property for Purchaser’s intended use, such tests may include, without limitation, soil 
borings, soil tests, tests to determine the adaptability of the Subject Property for drainage and 
environmental audits; and (2) collect all information that is necessary or appropriate in connection 
with this Real Estate Contract, or for Purchaser’s intended use of the Subject Property; and (3) 
conduct a Professional Land Survey by a surveyor licensed to practice land surveying under the 
laws of the state of Illinois at Purchaser’s expense.  (All of the foregoing examinations, inspections, 
studies and tests being hereinafter referred to as the “Studies”.)  All such Studies are to be made 
at Purchaser’s expense.  Purchaser agrees to repair any damage caused to the Subject Property as 
a result of the Studies, and to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Seller from and against any 
claims, demands, losses, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs or expenses resulting from 
Purchaser’s carrying out the Studies.  Purchaser shall not cause or allow any lien claim to be filed 
against the Subject Property as a result of said Studies, and shall remove any such claims so filed 

216



4 

within ten (10) days following actual or constructive notice thereof. Prior to performing or 
conducting any of the Studies, the Purchaser shall deliver to the Seller evidence of commercial 
general liability insurance with coverage for personal injury, including death, and property damage 
and limits of not less than One Million Dollars per occurrence and an aggregate limit of Two 
Million Dollars.  Seller’s insurance contract shall provide coverage for Purchaser to the extent 
required by this Agreement. 
 

9. Notice. Each Notice (“Notice”) provided for under this Contract must comply with 
the requirements of this paragraph.  Each Notice shall be in writing and sent by (i) depositing it 
with the United States Postal Service or any official successor thereto, certified or registered mail, 
return receipt requested, with adequate postage prepaid, or (ii) special courier service (e.g., Federal 
Express), addressed to the appropriate Party (and marked to a particular individual’s attention if 
so indicated) as hereinafter provided.  Each Notice shall be effective upon the date of delivery.  
Rejection or other refusal by the addressee to accept, or the inability of the United States Postal 
Service to deliver because of a changed address of which no Notice was given, shall be deemed to 
be the receipt of the Notice sent.  In the event that registered or certified mail service is not being 
provided by the United States Postal Service or any official successor thereto at the time in 
question, each Notice may then be served by personal service or sent by e-mail.  Any Party shall 
have the right from time-to-time to change the address or individual’s attention to which Notices 
to it shall be sent by giving to the other Parties at least ten (10) days prior Notice thereof.  The 
addresses of the Parties shall be those set forth on the first page of this Contract, with additional 
addresses as follows: 
 

IF TO SELLER: Winnetka Park District 
Attention: Executive Director 
540 Hibbard Road 
Winnetka, Illinois 60093 
E-Mail: jpeterson@winpark.org  

 
with a copy to: Ancel Glink 

Attention: Adam Simon  
175 E. Hawthorn Parkway Suite 145 
Vernon Hills, Illinois 60061 
E-Mail: asimon@ancelglink.com   

 
IF TO 
PURCHASER: Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District 

Attn: Director 
768 Oak Street 
Winnetka, Illinois 60093 
E-Mail: mdombrowski@winnetkalibrary.org  

 

217

mailto:jpeterson@winpark.org
mailto:asimon@ancelglink.com
mailto:mdombrowski@winnetkalibrary.org


5 

with a copy to:  
Attention:  Mark Ritzman 
Peregrine, Stime, Newman, Ritzman & Bruckner, Ltd. 
221 E. Illinois Street 
P.O. Box 564 
Wheaton, IL 60187 
E-Mail: mritzman@psnrb.com 

 
10. Closing Documents. At Closing, the following shall occur: 

 
10.1 Seller shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Purchaser the following: 

 
a. A Warranty Deed fully executed by Seller conveying to Purchaser the 

Subject Property; 
 
b. Owner’s policy of title insurance in the amount of the Purchase Price (the 

“Title Policy”), issued by the Title Company pursuant to the Title Commitment, subject 
only to Permitted Title Exceptions (with extended coverage if Purchaser elects to pay that 
expense);  

 
c. Evidence satisfactory to Purchaser and the Title Company that the person 

or persons executing the Closing documents on behalf of Seller have full right, power and 
authority to do so; 

 
d. Certificate of Non-Foreign Status executed by Seller; 
 
e. ALTA Statement duly executed by Seller; 
 
f. A Closing Statement; 
 
g. All required Transfer Tax Declarations; 
 
h. 1/2 of the escrow and closing costs; and 
 
i. Such other instruments as may be reasonably necessary to effect the 

conveyance of the Subject Property in accordance with this Contract. 
 

10.2 Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Seller the following: 
 

a. The Purchase Price adjusted in accordance with Paragraph 5; 
 
b. ALTA Statement duly executed by Purchaser; 
 
c. Evidence satisfactory to Seller that the person or persons executing the 

Closing documents on behalf of Purchaser have full right, power and authority to do so; 
 

218



6 

d. A signed Closing Statement; 
 
e. Counterparts of all required Transfer Tax Declarations; 
 
f. 1/2 of the escrow and closing costs; and 
 
g. Such other instruments as may be reasonably necessary to effect the 

conveyance of the Subject Property in accordance with this Contract. 
 
h. Affidavit of Title duly executed by Seller. 

 
11. Default and Remedies.  If Seller fails or refuses to convey the Subject Property in 

accordance with the terms of this Contract or otherwise perform its obligations hereunder, and 
such failure or refusal is not cured within fifteen (15) days after Notice from Purchaser, then 
Purchaser shall have the right to specific performance, or any and all other rights and remedies 
available at law or in equity for Seller’s breach.  Seller shall have all rights and remedies available 
at law or in equity for Purchaser’s breach, but shall not have the right of specific performance. 
 

12. Entire Agreement.  This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties and 
may not be amended except by written instrument executed by Purchaser and Seller. 
 

13. Interpretation.  The paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and are 
in no way intended to interpret, define, or limit the scope of content of this Contract or any 
provision thereof.  If any Party is made up of more than one person or entity, then all such persons 
and entities shall be included jointly and severally, even though the defined terms of such Party is 
used in the singular in this Contract.  If any right of approval or consent by a Party is provided for 
in this Contract, the Party shall exercise the right promptly, in good faith and reasonably, unless 
this Contract expressly gives such Party the right to use its sole discretion.  The term “Business 
Day” shall mean Monday through Friday, excluding holidays recognized by the state government 
of the State in which the Subject Property is located.  If any time period under this Contract ends 
on a day other than a Business Day, then the time period shall be extended until the next Business 
Day.  If a time period under this Contract is five (5) days or less, it shall mean five (5) Business 
Days. 
 

14. Possession; Risk of Loss. Seller shall deliver actual possession of the Subject 
Property at Closing and Seller shall bear all risk of loss with respect to the Property until closing.  
The Subject Property shall, on the date of Closing, be in substantially the same condition as of the 
Date of this Contract, normal wear and tear excepted. 
 

15. Applicable Law. This Contract shall be construed and interpreted in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Illinois. 
 

16. Parties’ Agreements.  
 
Seller warrants, represents and agrees that: 

 

219



7 

16.1 Seller is the owner of the Subject Property as of the Date of this Contract. 
 

16.2 Seller represents that it is not a “foreign person” as defined in Paragraph 1445 of 
the Internal Revenue Code, and is therefore exempt from the withholding requirements of said 
Paragraph. 
 

16.3 Seller represents and warrants to the best of Seller’s actual knowledge and belief, 
the Seller has not received any Notice, of any actual or pending litigation or proceeding by any 
organization, person, individual or governmental agency against Seller with respect to the Subject 
Property or any portion thereof or with respect thereto; and Seller has no actual knowledge, nor 
has Seller received any notice, of any violations of law, municipal or county ordinances, or other 
legal requirements with respect to the Subject Property (or any part thereof) or with respect to the 
use or occupancy of the Subject Property, including but not limited to any zoning, building, fire or 
health code violation or pending special  assessment, re-assessment or rate increases in connection 
with the Property. 

 
16.4 Seller represents and warrants to the best of Seller’s actual knowledge and belief: 
 
 
 

a. The Property has never been used for a sanitary land fill, dump or for the 
disposal, generation, treatment or storage of waste; 

 
b. It has not received any notice of any violation of any environmental 

protection laws or regulations or any lien relating to such with respect to the Property nor 
does it have any actual knowledge which would provide a basis for any such violation or 
lien; 

 
c. It is unaware of any encumbrances, restrictions or liabilities affecting the 

property which would result in the "recapture" of any costs or expenses. 
 

d. All required building permits have been obtained and fees paid for any 
improvements, including out buildings and exterior work, if any, to the premises made 
during Seller’s ownership of the property.   

 
16.5  The obligations of Purchaser under this Contract are subject to the condition that 

the warranties and representations of Seller in this Paragraph 16 and all subparagraphs are true and 
correct as of the Date of Closing.  If, due to a change in facts or circumstances, Seller is not able 
to affirm its warranties and representations, Purchaser shall have the option either to terminate or 
accept the Subject Property subject to the change in facts or circumstances. Subject to the 
preceding sentence, Seller shall affirm its warranties and representations in this Paragraph 16 and 
all subparagraphs at (and as of the Date of) Closing.  
 
 16.6 Purchaser warrants, represents and agrees: 
 

a. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the Purchaser, and executing 
and delivering any other agreement or other item contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise 

220



8 

required to fulfill the Purchaser’s obligations hereunder, have full authority to bind the Purchaser 
to such obligations and to so act on behalf of the Purchaser; 

 
b. The Purchaser has the authority and the legal right to make, deliver, and perform 

this Agreement and has taken all necessary actions and obtained all required consents and 
approvals to authorize the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement; and 

 
c. The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement are not prohibited 

by any requirement of law or under any contractual obligation of the Purchaser, will not result in 
a breach or default under any agreement to which the Purchaser is a party or to which the 
Purchaser is bound, and will not violate any restriction, court order, or agreement to which the 
Purchaser is subject. 
 
16.7 The obligations of Seller under this Contract are subject to the condition that the 

warranties and representations of Purchaser in this Paragraph 16 and all subparagraphs are true 
and correct as of the Date of Closing.  If, due to a change in facts or circumstances, Purchaser is 
not able to affirm its warranties and representations, Seller shall have the option either to terminate 
or sell the Subject Property subject to the change in facts or circumstances.  Subject to the 
preceding sentence, Purchaser shall affirm its warranties and representations in this Paragraph 16 
and all subparagraphs at (and as of the Date of) Closing. 
 

17. Contract. As used herein, the phrase “Date of this Contract” shall mean the date on 
which the acceptance of the offer is completed by the signing of the offer by Seller or Purchaser, 
whichever is the last to execute. 
 

18. Counterpart Execution. This Contract may be executed in separate counterparts.  It 
shall be fully executed when each Party whose signature is required has signed at least on (1) 
counterpart, even though no one (1) counterpart contains the signature of all the Parties. 
 

19. The parties executing this document on behalf of Seller and Purchaser do so only 
in their official capacity and shall incur no personal obligation or liability. 
 

20. Execution of Other Documents. The Parties agree to cooperate in good faith to 
complete and execute any additional documents that may be necessary to effectuate the 
conveyance of the Property or that may be required under applicable federal, state, or local laws, 
statutes, regulations, or ordinances related to such conveyance. Specifically, and without limitation 
of the foregoing, prior to the Closing Date, the Parties shall adopt appropriate resolutions or 
ordinances approving the conveyances contemplated by this Agreement and as required by the 
Illinois Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 601/0.01, et seq. 
 
 21. No Real Estate Broker. The Parties acknowledge, warrant, and agree that neither 
Party has dealt with a broker or consultant in connection with the conveyance of the Property, and 
that no person or entity is entitled to a broker’s fee, finder’s fees, or commission in connection 
with the conveyance of the Property to the School District. 
 

22. Miscellaneous.  In the event that, prior to the date of closing, all or any portion 
of the Property or any rights or easements therein shall be taken by condemnation or right 

221



9 

of eminent domain or like process, or shall be threatened with the same which, in the Library's 
opinion, would have a materially adverse impact upon the Library's proposed development of the 
Property, the Library shall, within thirty (30) days after having received notice thereof from the 
Seller, elect in writing to either: 

 
a. Continue this Contract in full force and effect, notwithstanding such taking 

or threatened taking, in which case the Library shall proceed to purchase the Property.  
The Library shall be entitled to appear and defend against same and the total amount 
of any condemnation award made prior to closing shall be paid to the Seller and 
applied as a credit to the Library at closing; or 

 
b. Delete that portion of the Property condemned or threatened to be 

condemned from this Contract with a proportionate reduction in the purchase price in 
which event the Library and the Seller shall jointly appear and defend against such 
condemnation proceedings; or: 

 
c. Terminate this Contract. 

 
 23. As-Is, Where-Is.  THE PURCHASER, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE 
PURCHASE PRICE, AGREES TO ACCEPT THE PROPERTY IN ITS "AS-IS", “WHERE IS” 
CONDITION, WITH ALL FAULTS, AS OF THE CLOSING DATE,  OTHER THAN MAY BE 
SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE SELLER HAS NOT MADE, OR 
AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO MAKE, ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION ABOUT 
THE PRESENT OR FUTURE PHYSICAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION, 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL, ZONING, OPERATION, INCOME GENERATED BY, OR 
ANY OTHER MATTER OR THING AFFECTING OR RELATING TO THE PROPERTY OR 
ANY MATTER OR THING PERTAINING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND NO SUCH 
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY SHALL BE IMPLIED OR ARISE BY OPERATION 
OF LAW, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF CONDITION, HABITABILITY, 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THE PURCHASER 
EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) OTHER THAN MAY BE SPECIFICALLY SET 
FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, NO SUCH WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION HAS 
BEEN MADE AND THAT THE PURCHASER IS NOT RELYING ON ANY WARRANTY OR 
REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER OTHER THAN MAY BE SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH 
OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND (B) THE PURCHASER, HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY 
TO MAKE AN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION AND EXAMINATION OF THE 
PROPERTY AND ALL MATTERS RELATED THERETO, IS RELYING SOLELY ON ITS 
OWN INVESTIGATION THEREOF.  THE TERMS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE 
THE CLOSING OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.  THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
PROPERTY BY THE PURCHASER IN “AS-IS” CONDITION AND “SUBJECT TO ALL 
FAULTS” DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEMNIFICATION OF THE SELLER OR A 
HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION IN FAVOR OF THE SELLER AND EACH PARTY SHALL 
BEAR THEIR OWN RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES 
CREATED BY EACH SUCH PARTY. 
 

222



10 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the 
date first written above. 
 
 
PURCHASER:     SELLER: 
 
Winnetka-Northfield Public Library District Winnetka Park District 
 
 
 
By: __________________________  By: ____________________________ 
 
https://psnrbcom.sharepoint.com/sites/PS/Shared Documents/General/_1LIBRARYDIST/WINNETKA/Property Purcahse from Park 
District/Real Estate Contract IGA 4895-2894-4174.docx 

223



11 

 EXHIBIT A 
 (Legal Description)  
 
 
Parcel I: 
Lot 1, in Winnetka Public Library District Winnetka Park District Plat of Resubdivision, a 
resubdivision of part of Lots 1 and 10 and all of Lots 11, 12, and 13 in Block 36 in Winnetka, 
being a subdivision of the Northeast quarter of Section 20, in Township 42 North, Range 13 East 
of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded December 12, 1986 as 
document no. 86595888, in Cook County, Illinois. 
 
Parcel II: 
That part of Lot 2 in Subdivision of Block 36 in Winnetka, that lies Westerly of a line drawn 
parallel with and 75 feet Southwesterly of the Northeasterly line of said lot as measured at right 
angles thereto, in the Northeast quarter of Section 20, Township 42 North, Range 13 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian, situated in the Village of Winnetka, in Cook County, Illinois. 
 
P.I.N.s: 05-20-218-022-0000; 05-20-218-023-0000 
 
Common Address: 768 Oak Street, Winnetka, Illinois 60093 
 

224


	Monthly Board Report.pdf
	Operating Performance Summary YTD�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Revenues, Expenses, Capitals Summary YTD�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Individual Fund Performance Actual vs Budget YTD�August 2022
	Individual Fund Performance Actual vs Budget YTD�August 2022
	Previous Years Comparison �All Funds Combined – Unaudited �August 2022
	Year End Projections �All Funds Combined – Unaudited �August 2022
	Revenues - Detail YTD�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Revenues - User Fees �Performance vs. Budget YTD �August 2022
	Donations/Contributions�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Expenses - Detail YTD�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022 
	Capitals/Contracts - Detail YTD�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Operating and Major Capitals�All Funds Combined - Unaudited�August 2022
	Operating Capitals�August 2022
	Operating Capitals Detail - 25K and above�August 2022
	Operating Capitals Detail - 25K and above�August 2022
	Capitals – Major�August 2022
	Fund Reserves 2022�August 2022
	Fund Reserves 2022�August 2022
	Statement of Cash and Investments�August 2022

	Addendum to June 9, 2022 Minutes.pdf
	9 June WPD presentation_C Dowding.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7


	wpd-board-meeting-agenda-09.22.22-v7.pdf
	WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING*
	Thursday, September 22, 2022 | 6:00 p.m.

	Remarks from Visitors.pdf
	WINNETKA PARK DISTRICT REMARKS FROM VISITORS & PUBLIC COMMENT




